
PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
North Plains Senior Center 

31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, October 6, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 09/15/2014 Council meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda may 

be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment Registration 
form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder. You are not required 
to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only your name.  
Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. PRESENTATION 

A. None Scheduled 
 

7. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director, the Chief of Police, Library 

Director and the Finance Director.  
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion of Unaudited FY 2013-14 Actuals 
B. Discussion of First Quarter update of FY 2014-15 
C. Discussion on request for installation of flashing lights installed on Commercial 

Street. 
D. Discussion of Garlic Festival expenses for the City of North Plains 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Adopt Resolution No. 1855 approving fiscal year 2014-15 budget transfer of 
appropriations to purchase a snow plow and a leaf vacuum. 
 

 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 56



11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 
 

12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

B. October 2014 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Chili Cook-Off-6:00 p.m. at Jessie Mays Community Hall on Thursday, October 16 

 Pumpkin Fun Run festivities start at 9:00 at Jessie Mays Community Hall on 
Saturday, October 25 

 
15. EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (No action may be taken in executive session. If action 

needs to be taken, the Council will do so in regular session.) 
A. Adjourn to Executive Session in accordance with ORS 192.660(2)(i) and 

192.660(8) regarding employee performance evaluations 
1) To review employee performance of the City Manager  

  
16. NEW BUSINESS: (Cont.) 

E. Discuss the results of the Council’s review of employee performance of the City 
Manager. 

 
17. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will also 
endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other services, 
if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please call City Hall 
at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains 
Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. 

 
 

The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 
 

Monday, October 20, 2014 Monday, November 3, 2014 Monday, November 17, 2014 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 56



CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, September 15, 2014 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 

Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher led the flag salute.  
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher, Council President Teri Lenahan, Councilors: 

Charlynn Newton, Robert Kindel, Jr., and Glen Warren 
 

Excused: Michael Demagalski, Michael Broome 
 

Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder; Public Works 
Director Blake Boyles; City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 09/02/2014 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Warren and seconded by Lenahan to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 None were forthcoming 
 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 

None scheduled 
 
7. STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Public Works Director.  Blake Boyles reported the Public Works department has gone 
through 2000 pounds of tar so far with the crack sealing project. They are almost done with 
the south side of Commercial Street and will continue on with the north side next. 
 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) surveys were distributed to the residents on 
Wascoe Street—east of Main Street. These surveys help determine if the street is eligible to 
receive CDBG funding. A good portion of surveys have come back and are indicating that 
too many residents are above the moderate income that would secure a grant. 
 
Chief of Police. Chief Snyder stated Council had expressed an interest in how WCCCA 
comes up with the amount the City is charged for their services. Snyder distributed a 
document to Council showing the formula used. Snyder also reported the police department 
is getting ready for CPR training.  
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 56



 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Approval of Resolution No. 1854 releasing matching funds for Food Pantry 
Canopy 

 
Councilor Broome is organizing a fundraiser dance to purchase building materials for a 
protective canopy in the driveway at 31311 NW Commercial Street for Food Pantry patrons.  
Broome had requested Council to match the amount raised from the dance.  The preliminary 
estimate for the building materials is $755.00. This resolution is asking for approval from the 
council for matching funds. The fiscal impact would be around $400. Discussion ensued. 
 
Motion by Lenahan. Second by Warren to adopt Resolution No. 1854 releasing matching 
funds raised from a dance to be organized this fall, to build a protective canopy over the 
driveway at 31311 NW Commercial Street. This amount is not to exceed $400.00. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

B. Discussion of Vanderzanden property and estimated debt payments 
 
DeBry presented the staff report. Council requested staff to report on the estimated financial 
burden the City would incur if the one acre piece of property on Commercial Street, east of 
311th, were purchased. DeBry stated there are many moving parts to this purchase. The 
URA has capacity to repay the loan and so does the General Fund. We would need to time 
this correctly for the URA to fund it. 
 
A low offer of $350,000 at 4.5% would have an estimated annual cost of $26,931, and a 
high offer of $450,000 at 7% would have an estimated cost of $37,214. 
 
Rodney Linz, 42315 NW Woollen Road, Banks, Oregon, son-in-law of Frank Vanderzanden, 
the owner of the property, addressed the Council. Linz gave a history of the property since 
they purchase of the property back in 1968 and 1971—there are two pieces to it. Linz 
presented the reason for having the appraisal for the property done. Discussion ensued. 
 
Staff was seeking Council direction on this issue. Discussion continued. One option is to buy 
it, change the zoning and then resell it as commercial property. It could be used as an 
economic development tool as it is centrally located. This property could be critical to 
expanding the downtown area. Council wants to hear what the Planning Commission has to 
say about this property and the uses for it. This could be discussed again after further 
revisions on the Comprehensive Plan have been made. 
 

C. August 2014 Check Register 
 
Council reviewed the items on the August Check Register. The staff report included a list of 
account numbers with the corresponding departments to help clarify some questions 
Council may have when reviewing the check register. A few questions were asked by the 
Council and were satisfactorily answered by staff. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 56



 
D. Approval of reallocating funds from purchasing a snow plow to purchasing a leaf 

vacuum 
 
Boyles presented the staff report. During preliminary forecasting for the 2014-2015 fiscal 
budget, both a leaf vacuum and snow plow was requested to be purchased. During the cost 
cutting period of the budget process, the leaf vacuum was cut and the purchase of the snow 
plow was chosen. Boyles initially was going to request that instead of the snow plow he 
would like to purchase the leaf vacuum as there is actually more of a need for the leaf 
vacuum. There are many leaves that are accumulating from maturing street trees in 
subdivisions and being able to remove the leaves would help prevent flooding by plugged 
catch basins. 
 
Boyles has done additional research on the purchase of these two items. He has negotiated 
the purchase price of the leaf vacuum to $6200. He would also be able to pick up a snow 
blade for $1800. If Council would consider releasing an additional $1000 from the 
contingency fund, he would be able to get both items for not much more than what was 
originally allocated. Discussion ensued. 
 
Motion by Kindel. Second by Warren to reallocate the funds for both the leaf vacuum and 
the snow blade and release $1000 from the contingency money to cover the balance.  
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 

SECOND READING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
DeBry reported that the Washington County Coordinating Committee is discussing if one or 
two Area Commissions on Transit (ACT) should be formed in Washington County. The cities 
can get together and recommend to ODOT transportation project priorities for the area. 
When the boundaries were redrawn in 2012, North Plains was excluded from the Northwest 
ACT that encompasses western Washington County, in addition to Columbia, Clatsop and 
Tillamook counties. Western Washington county, and most of the Portland metropolitan area 
has traditionally related priorities through Metro's PAC and WCCC. There was a task force 
that recently presented boundary options for one or two acts, divided between counties and 
rural verses metropolitan areas. 
 
DeBry advised WCCC that North Plains would prefer to be part of a Washington County 
ACT, associated with Hillsboro and other nearby communities.  She advised that WCCC is 
in the infancy stage of the process. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 56



 

The 2nd Annual Pumpkin Run is coming together. We have eight run registrants. Looking for 
artists that want to carve the large pumpkins. The pumpkins are over 400 lbs. 
 

Chili Cook-off is going to occur on October 16. There has been a change in state laws. 
People can’t just sample entries prepared in non-commercial kitchens. They have to be a 
judge. The Senior Center chili is available for attendees that don’t want to be a judge. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Hatcher reminded the Councilors that the joint study session with the City Council and the 
Planning Commission to discuss the Comprehensive Plans is scheduled for Monday, 
September 22, 2014 at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 
Councilor Newton stated she would not be available to attend the Parks Board meeting on 
September 24.  Lenahan stated she would be in attendance at that meeting. 
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Council Candidate Forum at Jessie Mays at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, September 
30, 2014 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 8:15 p.m. 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved ___________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 56



 

Agenda Item No: 5C 

Department Reports      

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date: September 30, 2014 

To: Martha DeBry, City Manager 
Mayor and City Council 
Department Heads 
 

From: Police Chief Bill Snyder 

Subject: POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT: September 2014 

 

 In conjunction with all Washington County police departments and WCSO, North 
Plains will be looking into body worn cameras for our officers. 

 NPPD officers are scheduled for multiple court appearances for the month of October 
due to recent arrests. 

 Firearms training was attended by several this month.  Officers are training at JROC 
in Timber. 

 CPR/First Aid training has been scheduled for October. 

 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 56



Activity
2014     

Sept

2014 

Aug

2014 

July

2014 

June

2014 

May

2014     

Apr

2014 

Mar

2014    

Feb

2014 

Jan

2013    

Dec

2013    

Nov

2013    

Oct

2013    

Sep

2013   

Aug

2013   

July

2013 

June

2013 

May

2013 

Apr

2013 

Mar

2013 

Feb

Agency Assist 1 1 2           1       1       3       3  NA        -       5        -       1       1        -       4        -       1       1 

Animal          -             -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -       1        -        -       1        - -       -              - 

Arson - Possible          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -              - 

Assault 1          -            2       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -       1        -        -       1       1        - -             1 

Burglary 1          -            1        -       1        -        -  NA        -       1       1        -       1        -        -       1       1       1 

Child Abuse          -             -        -        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Child Neglect 1          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        - -       -              - 

Criminal Mischief 1 1           2       3        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -       1       1       2       1 

Death Investigation          -             -        -        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Detox Arrest          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -              - 

Drug Arrest 1 1 2          -            1       2       1       1       2  NA       4        -        -       1       1       3       2       2       2       1 

Drug Investigation          -            2       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

DUII 1 1 1          -            1        -        -       1        -  NA        -       2        -       1       1       1        - 1      -              - 

False Information          -             -        -        -        -        -  NA       1        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Forgery          -             -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -       1        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Found Property          -             -        -        -       1       1  NA       2       2       1       1       1       1       1 -       -             1 

Fraud          -            1       4        -        -       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 
Furnishing Alcohol 

to Minor
         -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        - 

-       -       
       - 

Harrassment 1 1           1          1        -       1        -       1  NA        -       1       1        -        -       1        -       1 -             1 

Hit and Run 1          -             -        -       1        -        -  NA       1        -       1        -        -       1       1       1       1        - 

Identity Theft          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -              - 

Information Report 4 1          -         3       1        -       4  NA       2        -       3       1       2       7        -       3       3       1 

Interfering Arrest 1          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1       1        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Littering Arrest          -         1        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -              - 

Menacing Arrest          -         1        -        -        -  NA        -        -       1        -        -        - -       -              - 

Police Mental Hold 1           1       1        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -             1 
Police Protective 

Custody
         -   

-         -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       1      1      -       

Rape II          -            1        -        -       1        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 56



Activity
2014     

Sept

2014 

Aug

2014 

July

2014 

June

2014 

May

2014     

Apr

2014 

Mar

2014    

Feb

2014 

Jan

2013    

Dec

2013    

Nov

2013    

Oct

2013    

Sep

2013   

Aug

2013   

July

2013 

June

2013 

May

2013 

Apr

2013 

Mar

2013 

Feb

Reckless Driving          -             -        -        -       2        -  NA        -        -        -        -       1        -        - -       -              - 

Recovery of Stolen          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        - -       -              - 

Runaway 1          -         1        -        -        -  NA       2        -        -        -        -       2        - -       -              - 

Sex Abuse III           1 

Stalking Arrest          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1 -       -              - 

Switched Plates          -   -       -              - 

Theft 1 2           2          2       1       1       1       2  NA       1       6       2       1       3        -        -       1       1        - 

Traffic Related          -            1       2        -        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Trespass II 1          -             -        -        -       1        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Vehicle - Accident 1 2 1          -             -        -        -       2        -  NA       1       3       3        -       1        -       1 -       -              - 

Vehicle - Accident          -             -        -       1        -        -  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Vehicle - Eluding          -   -         -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       -       1      

Vehicle - Stolen 1          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        - -       -             1 

Vehicle - Unlawful 1          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1       3        -       1       2       2        - 

Vehicle - Tow 1          -            1        -       3       1       1  NA        -        -        -        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Violation Release          -             -        -        -        -        -        -        -        -       1        -        -        -        - -       -              - 

Warrant arrest 1          -             -        -        -       1       1  NA       1        -        -       1       4        -        -       1       1       1 

Welfare Check          -            2        -       1        -       1  NA       1        -       2        -       1       1       1       2 -             5 

Total 

Arrests/Reports/ 
10 16 13

8 16 21 12 15 19 NA 18 21 20 11 21 20 18 17 15 17

Total Patrol Hours TBD 318 320 244.25 210.5

Total Reserve Hours TBD 121.5 152.5 136.5 79.5

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 56



City of North Plains 

Public Works Department 

9/26/2014 

TO:   Martha DeBry, City Manager 
  City Council 
  Department Heads 
FROM:  Blake Boyles, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT  

 P&W Glencoe crossing coordination 

 Tank cleaning scheduled for November 

 Sunset Ridge Subdivision coordination 

 North Ave Subdivision coordination 

 Pacific Estates Subdivision coordination 

 McKay Fields Subdivision coordination 

 Wascoe St CDBG application 

 PGE lighting work in new subdivisions 

Public Works Crews are working on the following projects/tasks: 

 Equipment Maintenance  

 Crack sealing 

 Cross Connection  

 Locates 

 Leak repair Cottage St- leak found in Leak assessment 

 Service installation 

 Water samples 

 Mowing 

 Park Maintenance 

 Curb painting on Commercial Street 

 Winterizing on irrigation systems 

 Building maintenance: railing installed and painted Jessie Mays on south porch 

 Landscape maintenance (library)  

 Construction inspection (North Ave and Pacific St, McKay Fields, Sunset Ridge) 

 Clean up with Garden Club 

 

 

Future reports will include tasks accomplished and those pending. If there is any other information 

you may want to see in the report, please let me know.- 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 56



City of North Plains - Library Department – October 6, 2014 
 
TO: Martha DeBry, City Manager, and to City Council Members 
FROM: Debbie Brodie, Library Director 
SUBJECT: DEPARTMENT REPORT 
 
 

Beginner Internet Genealogy.  Learn how to use Family Search, Heritage Quest, and 
Ancestry databases.  Explore websites such as Find-a-Grave and Cyndi’s List.  Three FREE 
classes will be taught by Library staff member Donna.  Call the Library to sign up for one or all 
classes (503-647-5051): 

 Wednesday, October   8 Basic Record-Keeping and Heritage Quest 

 Wednesday, October 15 Family Search, Find-a-Grave, and Cyndi’s List 

 Wednesday, October 22 Ancestry and Wrap-up 
Classes will be hands-on.  Come prepared with whatever information you have about people 
you want to find - names, dates and locations of birth, death, and marriage.  Class size is limited 
to the nine public computers (which may be shared by two participants), or if you bring your 
own laptop, you will be able to log onto all sites except Ancestry. 
 
DVDs Now on 21-Day Checkout.  The Library’s new adult and children’s movies will continue 
to check out for 7 days, but all of the main adult movie collection and all of the main children’s 
movie collection will now be checked out for 21 days.  This will allow our North Plains patrons 
longer time to view their favorite movies, and it is consistent with other libraries’ practices within 
the WCCLS system. 
 
Art Exhibit.  The art exhibit on display in October features Guardian Relics by Patricia 
Cochran.  “I see my glassed figures as haunting little relics that nod to our common past - a 
time when we lived in tribes, or clans, or villages and worked together to survive. By placing 
my figures in groupings, and combining tiny treasures of nature with scraps of fabric and bits 
of bead, I hope to evoke within the viewer an echo of recognition to an ancient time when 
ancestral voices sang, a tree was sacred, or the earth was venerated. Art has the power to 
help quiet our busy lives. It gives us a place to focus our attention and allow the inner voices 
to speak. It can connect us with our past and those who came before us.” 
 
Quilt Display.  The October quilt on display above the checkout desk was created by Nancy 
Stober, a member of the Westside Quilters Guild.  This Halloween themed work of art, entitled 
“Cats Go Trick or Treat,” will be an all-time a favorite.  Nancy:  “I have always loved Halloween 
and have stacks of Halloween fabric.  This was a panel I had had for a quite a while and then 
found a pattern using the exact panel.  I love the checkerboard X design.  It was a new 
challenge at the time and gave me more confidence in piecing.” 
 
Storytimes.  Children ages 0-6 are invited to participate every Wednesday at 11:30 a.m. in the 
children's section of the Library. 

 October 1  Storytime with Miss Marion:  Crazy Creatures 

 October 8  Storytime with Children’s Librarian Becky:  Folktales 

 October 15  Special Guest Storytime:  Officer Brennan and K9 Rikko 

 October 22  Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:  Farms 

 October 29  Storytime with Youth Librarian Jackie:  Owls 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 56



Writers’ Group.  Share your writing projects and receive feedback from peers on Thursday, 
October 2 at 6:30 p.m.  New members are welcome to join.  (This is not a teacher/trainer-led 
class.) 
 
First Friday Flick.  Join us on the first Friday of each month at the Jessie Mays Community 
Hall at 30975 NW Hillcrest Street at 6 p.m. for a FREE movie showing.  On Friday, October 
3, come for a DOUBLE FEATURE!  First see an animated family adventure film in which a 
group of friends takes a road trip into bayou country to attend a vampire festival.  Then watch 
a G-rated animation adventure that first premiered as a television Halloween special. 
 
Super Saturdays are free, hour-long performances for children and their families held at the 
Jesse Mays Community Hall at 30975 NW Hillcrest Street on the second Saturday of most 
months during the school year.  The October 11 Super Saturday will feature BJ the Clown.  All 
ages are welcome to enjoy an exciting hour of comedy, juggling, magic, music, storytelling, 
puppetry, and audience participation – a high-energy show that children will talk about for 
months! 
 
Friends of the Library.  There will be a general meeting of the Friends on Monday, October 
13 at the Library from 7:30-9 p.m.  New members are welcome to attend. 
 
Library Book Club.  Join us on Wednesday, October 29 at 7:30 p.m. at the Library to discuss 
The Paris Wife by Paula McLain.  This is a fictionalized story of the extraordinary love affair 
between Ernest Hemingway and his first wife, Hadley Richardson.  From a whirlwind courtship 
and wedding in Chicago in 1920 to the exotic life of Paris where they hobnob with other famous 
expatriates, the couple wrestles with his flourishing writing career and a deception that could 
undo their lives together. 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 56



 

Agenda Item No: 9A   

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 6, 2014 

To:  City Council 

From:  Finance Director Rachael Lembo 

Subject: FY2013-14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

Request:  This item is informational only.  
 
Background:  Enclosed are the unaudited actuals for Fiscal Year 2013-2014. The fiscal 
year has been closed and all accounts reviewed, and the audit will begin in mid-October 
with our new auditor, Dennis Conner, CPA.  
 
Highlights from the 2013-14 fiscal year include:  
 

 In the General Fund 91% of revenues were received. The bulk of the variance, 
$91k, is due to lower than expected transfers in from other funds – mainly 
because of expenditure savings in the General Fund. Expenditures were 89% of 
budget, including $85k in contingency which wasn’t used. The change in fund 
balance is ($228k), which includes the $185k loan to the URA to be repaid over 
ten years.  

 
 The Street Fund came in right on budget and ended the year with an ending 

fund balance of $181k, including $141k reserved for Street Fee in Lieu, $10k 
transferred from the General Fund for Highland Court / Recology repairs, and 
$30k unassigned (but still restricted to Street).  

 
 In the Water Fund 96% of revenues were received, and 87% of expenditures 

incurred. The expenditure savings is primarily due to lower transfers to the 
General Fund and lower pass through SDCs to JWC.   

 
 Transportation Development Tax and Parks Capital Funds both had 

significant revenues due to SDCs on 27 new homes, however that was less than 
the 40 budgeted. The supplemental budget in April predicted a high number of 
new housing starts to ensure sufficient budget expense for Water SDC passed to 
JWC. Both funds incurred some capital expense for expansion projects 
performed by DR Horton in the Highland Court development.  

 
 The Traffic Impact Fee and Vehicle Equipment Reserve Funds had no 

expenditures.   
 
 ____________________________________ 

NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 
Monday, October 6, 2014 

Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 56



There were two appropriation level line items that exceeded budget. The Police 
department Materials and Services exceeded budget by $3k, however the department 
as a whole was within budget. Parks Capital Fund Capital Outlay exceeded budget by 
$1k, however the fund as a whole was within budget.   
    
Fiscal Impact:  This item is for informational purposes only.  
 
Sample Motion:  This item is informational only. 
 
Attachment – FY2013-14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 
  

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

GENERAL FUND 110 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 1,071,024     1,071,024          

REVENUES

411000 Property Taxes 352,922        339,306              (13,616)         96%

462000 Rentals 7,000            6,904                   (96)                 99%

Licenses, Permits, Fees ‐               

418101 Water Franchise 39,000          39,000                 ‐                 100%

418102 CWS Franchise 20,000          24,556                 4,556             123%

418103 Qwest Franchise 6,000            5,080                   (920)               85%

418104 Comcast Franchise 5,400            6,017                   617                111%

418105 Garbage Franchise 10,000          10,922                 922                109%

418107 PGE Franchise 91,000          91,311                 311                100%

418108 NW Natural Gas Franchise 24,000          38,764                 14,764           162%

418109 Misc Franchise 750               902                      152                120%

418110 MACC Franchise 13,200          14,033                 833                106%

421000 Business License 6,400            6,651                   251                104%

422000 Recology Fund 35,000          27,556                 (7,444)           79%

441419 Building Permit 25,000          40,023                 15,023           160%

441420 Engineering Plan Review 37,500          11,427                 (26,073)         30%

450000 Misc Fees 1,000            85                        (915)               8%

450455 Library Fines and Fees 10,400          10,054                 (346)               97%

324,650        326,382              1,732             101%

Intergovernmental

436000 Liquor Tax 23,000          27,950                 4,950             122%

437000 Cigarette Tax 2,800            2,722                   (78)                 97%

438000 State Revenue Sharing 13,000          17,415                 4,415             134%

439000 WCCLS  99,405          99,405                 ‐                 100%

138,205        147,492              9,287             107%

Fines and Forfeitures

450421 Police Citations 52,229          52,090                 (139)               100%

52,229          52,090                 (139)               100%

Grants and Donations

431000 Grants ‐ General 5,500            5,500                   ‐                 100%

431001 Grants ‐ Police 38,500          20,617                 (17,883)         54%

431002 Grants ‐ Library 29,891          13,039                 (16,852)         44%

431003 Grants ‐ Planning 1,000            1,000                   ‐                 100%

464000 Donations ‐ General ‐                60                        60                  100%

464100 Concerts in the Park Rev ‐                ‐                       ‐                 0%

464101 4th of July don/spon 14,000          18,521                 4,521             132%

464102 Comm Events Don/spon 1,391            1,200                   (191)               86%

464103 Music/Dance Event Rev 2,455            2,870                   415                117%

464106 Pumpkin Run Rev 2,766            2,666                   (100)               96%

464113 Holiday Bazaar Rev ‐                419                      419                100%

464114 BBQ Event Rev 40,000          13,017                 (26,983)         33%

464115 AWL Rev 1,200            490                      (710)               41%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

GENERAL FUND 110 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

464421 Donations ‐ Police 1,700            ‐                       (1,700)           0%

464455 Donations ‐ Library 7,000            6,670                   (330)               95%

145,403        86,068                 (59,335)         59%

461000 Interest 4,410            6,238                   1,828             141%

440000 Miscellaneous 10,000          9,364                   (636)               94%

445000 Sale of asset 6,000            5,000                   (1,000)           83%

Transfers

820111 Transfers In ‐ Rec. Street 62,000          50,983                 (11,017)         82%

820111x Transfers In ‐ Street 175,449        133,867              (41,582)         76%

820210 Transfers In ‐ Water 458,428        421,708              (36,720)         92%

820130 Transfers In ‐ TDT 4,000            2,614                   (1,386)           65%

820131 Transfers In ‐ Parks Cap 8,400            8,133                   (267)               97%

820113 Transfers In ‐ URA ‐                ‐                       ‐                 0%

708,277        617,305              (90,972)         87%

840000 Debt Proceeds 35,803          35,803                 (0)                   100%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,784,899     1,631,953           (152,946)       91%

EXPENDITURES ‐ BY DEPT

110‐411 Culture and Recreation 85,882          56,204                 29,678           65%

110‐419 General Government 596,344        580,939              15,405           97%

110‐421 Police 454,844        434,639              20,206           96%

110‐433 Public Works 433,220        382,996              50,224           88%

110‐452 Parks 19,760          18,081                 1,679             92%

110‐455 Library 224,210        196,723              27,487           88%

110‐465 Planning 7,100            5,848                   1,252             82%

Trans Transfers Out ‐                ‐                       ‐                 0%

SP Special Payment‐ URA loan 185,000        185,000              ‐                 100%

CONTINGENCY 85,000          ‐                       85,000           0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,091,360     1,860,430           230,930        89%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (306,461)       (228,477)             230,930       

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 764,563       842,547              461,861       

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

CULTURE AND RECREATION 110‐411 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 8,000            7,243                   757                91%

220000 Payroll Taxes 1,477            598                      879                40%

230000 Retirement 1,215            772                      442                64%

PERSONAL SERVICES 10,691          8,613                   2,078             81%

300100 Community Events 1,000            1,348                   (348)               135%

300101 4th of July 24,000          22,326                 1,674             93%

300102 Concerts in the Park 2,100            2,054                   46                  98%

300103 Dances 1,520            1,054                   466                69%

300103b Dances‐ donated proceeds 3,021            3,406                   (385)               113%

300106 Fall Festival (Pumpkin Run) 3,100            3,063                   37                  99%

300107 Chili Cookoff 500               492                      8                     98%

300108 National Night Out 400               384                      16                  96%

300109 Playdates 150               38                        112                25%

300111 Ice Cream Social 300               471                      (171)               157%

300112 Farmers' Market 300               ‐                       300                0%

300113 Holiday Bazaar 100               85                        15                  85%

300114 BBQ 37,500          12,156                 25,344           32%

300115 Adventures without Limits 1,200            716                      484                60%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 75,191          47,591                27,600          63%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 85,882          56,204                29,678          65%

Variance Pos / (Neg)

Budget to Actuals

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 110‐419 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 280,301       274,288              6,013             98%

210000 Employee Benefits 39,731          39,834                 (102)               100%

220000 Payroll Taxes 26,498          23,466                 3,032             89%

230000 Retirement 40,462          36,895                 3,567             91%

PERSONAL SERVICES 386,992       374,482              12,510          97%

300000 Education and Training 8,500            8,318                   182                98%

300104 Donations 8,650            8,150                   500                94%

300010 BUG Connection 9,000            7,668                   1,332             85%

310000 Utilities 16,602          15,326                 1,276             92%

330000 Professional Services ‐               

330000 Attorney 20,000          18,150                 1,850             91%

330000 Audit 9,000            8,250                   750                92%

330000 Springbrook 15,000          12,051                 2,949             80%

330000 IT Services 11,900          17,027                 (5,127)           143%

330000 IT Services ‐ hardware ‐                960                      (960)               100%

330000 Moonlight 14,500          13,294                 1,206             92%

330000 Recorder ‐                ‐                       ‐                 0%

330000 Payroll Processing 3,600            5,451                   (1,851)           151%

330000 Janitorial ‐ City Hall 2,400            2,320                   80                  97%

330000 Security ‐ City Hall 2,520            1,892                   628                75%

330000 Other 3,500            6,212                   (2,712)           177%

82,420          85,607                 (3,187)           104%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance

340000 Copier Usage/Main. 9,000            9,453                   (453)               105%

340000 HVAC 3,720            3,738                   (18)                 100%

340000 Other 5,000            4,066                   934                81%

17,720          17,257                 463                97%

350000 Agency Memberships 3,660            4,329                   (669)               118%

380000 Miscellaneous 500               313                      187                63%

500000 Employee/ Vol Recognition 1,500            2,045                   (545)               136%

540000 Advertising 800               945                      (145)               118%

610000 Supplies 15,000          13,354                 1,646             89%

621000 Insurance 27,500          27,620                 (120)               100%

621002 Workers' Compensation 17,500          15,525                 1,975             89%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 209,352       206,457              2,895             99%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 596,344       580,939              15,405          97%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

POLICE 110‐421 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 142,350               142,201              149                100%

120000 Hourly 36,799                  33,663                 3,136             91%

125000 Reserves 32,000                  18,660                 13,340           58%

210000 Employee Benefits 18,414                  17,175                 1,239             93%

220000 Payroll Taxes 20,484                  16,812                 3,672             82%

230000 Retirement 38,927                  37,263                 1,664             96%

PERSONAL SERVICES 288,974               265,774              23,201          92%

300000 Education and Training 5,200                    6,033                   (833)               116%

330000 Professional Services

330000 PPDS 3,100                    3,090                   10                   100%

330000 Wireless Access 4,200                    4,451                   (251)               106%

330000 Webleds 1,575                    1,575                   ‐                  100%

330000 HPD Evidence Storage 2,600                    2,547                   53                   98%

330000 Law Enforcement Manual 2,000                    1,950                   50                   98%

330000 E‐ticket 2,000                    3,170                   (1,170)           159%

330000 Employment Exams ‐                        1,247                   (1,247)           100%

330000 Other 4,500                    1,399                   3,101             31%

19,975                  19,429                 546                97%

330912 WA County Dispatch 12,060                  12,060                 ‐                  100%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 6,000                    8,217                   (2,217)           137%

350000 Agency Memberships 1,500                    1,496                   4                      100%

370000 Rentals and Leases

370000 Chevy Tahoe 11,458                  11,458                 ‐                  100%

370000 Dodge Charger 13,493                  13,493                 ‐                  100%

370000 Dodge V8 Charger 9,181                    9,181                   ‐                  100%

370000 Other 1,000                    402                      598                40%

35,132                  34,534                 598                98%

610000 Supplies 13,200                  15,322                 (2,122)           116%

610100 Uniforms 3,500                    3,403                   97                   97%

610224 Fuel 12,500                  13,310                 (810)               106%

630000 Equipment (non‐capital)

630000 Firearms 4,800                    5,384                   (584)               112%

630000 Radio 3,000                    2,475                   525                83%

630000 Camera 5,000                    4,192                   808                84%

630000 Other ‐                        (0)                         0                      100%

12,800                  12,051                 749                94%

207000 Court Pass Through 3,000                    2,009                   991                67%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 124,867               127,862              (2,995)           102%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

POLICE 110‐421 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

770000 Equipment/Vehicles 35,803                  35,803                 0                      100%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 35,803                 35,803                0                     100%

810009 Transfers Out ‐ Equip Res.  5,200                    5,200                   ‐                  100%

TRANSFERS 5,200                    5,200                   ‐                  100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 454,844               434,639              20,206          96%

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

PUBLIC WORKS 110‐433 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 251,463       241,229              10,234           96%

210000 Employee Benefits 38,284          34,785                 3,498             91%

220000 Payroll Taxes 22,914          20,349                 2,565             89%

230000 Retirement 45,789          45,189                 600                99%

PERSONAL SERVICES 358,450       341,552              16,898          95%

300000 Education and Training 2,300            370                      1,930             16%

310000 Utilities 1,320            1,046                   274                79%

330000 Professional Services 1,600            354                      1,246             22%

330110 City Engineer Plan Review  33,750          9,937                   23,813           29%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 15,000          7,935                   7,065             53%

610000 Supplies 2,000            4,318                   (2,318)           216%

610090 Uniforms 1,000            340                      660                34%

610224 Fuel 10,800          10,144                 656                94%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 67,770          34,444                33,326          51%

810009 Transfers ‐ Veh Reserve 7,000            7,000                   ‐                 100%

TRANSFERS 7,000            7,000                   ‐                 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 433,220       382,996              50,224          88%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

PARKS 110‐452 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

EXPENDITURES

310000 Utilities 5,160                    5,485                   (325)               106%

330000 Professional Services 600                       ‐                       600                0%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 8,000                    7,650                   350                96%

610000 Supplies 6,000                    4,946                   1,054             82%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 19,760                 18,081                1,679             92%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 19,760                 18,081                1,679             92%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

LIBRARY 110‐455 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

EXPENDITURES

110000 Salaries 140,623               127,757              12,865           91%

210000 Employee Benefits 255                       222                      33                   87%

220000 Payroll Taxes 15,184                  11,826                 3,359             78%

230000 Retirement 16,198                  13,433                 2,765             83%

PERSONAL SERVICES 172,260               153,238              19,022          89%

300000 Education and Training 1,970                    815                      1,155             41%

300100 Donations ‐                        215                      (215)                100%

310000 Utilities 8,160                    8,101                   59                   99%

330000 Professional Services

330000 Computer Software 2,000                    1,449                   551                 72%

330000 Janitorial 2,100                    2,065                   35                   98%

330000 Security 770                       987                      (217)                128%

330000 Other 450                       967                      (517)                215%

5,320                    5,468                   (148)                103%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance

340000 Building Maintenance 3,000                    502                      2,498             17%

340000 HVAC Maintenance 2,000                    ‐                       2,000             0%

340000 Copier Maintenance 2,600                    2,586                   14                   99%

7,600                    3,088                   4,512             41%

610000 Supplies 13,700                  10,625                 3,075             78%

640000 Library Supplies 13,600                  13,572                 29                   100%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 50,350                 41,885                8,465             83%

810009 Transfers Out ‐ Equip Res. 1,600                    1,600                   ‐                  100%

TRANSFERS 1,600                    1,600                   ‐                  100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 224,210               196,723              27,487          88%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

PLANNING 110‐465 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

EXPENDITURES

300000 Education and Training 100               500                      (400)               500%

330000 Professional Services 5,000            4,543                   457                91%

360000 Advertising 2,000            805                      1,195             40%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 7,100            5,848                   1,252             82%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,100            5,848                   1,252             82%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

STREET FUND 111 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 570,236               570,236              ‐                 

REVENUES

Licenses, Permits, Fees

435003 TUF 25,200                  25,538                 338                 101%

445000 SDCs 20,720                  12,691                 (8,029)           61%

45,920                  38,229                 (7,691)           83%

Intergovernmental

435001 Gas Tax ‐ State 108,000               115,020              7,020             106%

435002 Gas Tax ‐ County 7,500                    7,341                   (159)               98%

115,500               122,361              6,861             106%

431110 Grants ‐ Claxtar 52,000                  52,132                 132                 100%

461000 Interest 2,900                    1,210                   (1,690)           42%

440000 Miscellaneous 6,500                    9,273                   2,773             143%

TOTAL REVENUES 222,820               223,205              385                 100%

EXPENDITURES

360000 Advertising 400                       20                        380                 5%

610000 Supplies 2,000                    2,917                   (917)               146%

640000 Street Lights 27,552                  24,024                 3,528             87%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 29,952                 26,962                2,990             90%

770101 Claxtar Project 401,000               387,106              13,894           97%

770103 Street Projects 15,000                  13,468                 1,532             90%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 416,000               400,574              15,426          96%

810110 Transfers Out ‐Rec. to GF 62,000                  50,983                 11,017           82%

810110x Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund  138,532               133,867              4,665             97%

TRANSFERS 200,532               184,850              15,682          92%

CONTINGENCY ‐                        ‐                       ‐                  0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 646,484               612,386              34,098          95%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (423,664)              (389,180)             34,483         

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 146,572               181,056              34,483         

Street Fee in Lieu 141,154               141,154             

Recology Fund 10,000                  10,000                

Unassigned (4,582)                   29,902                

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

WATER FUND 210 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

Committed to Capital Projects 188,574               188,574             

Unassigned 723,536               723,536             

OPENING FUND BALANCE 912,110               912,110              ‐                      

REVENUES

Charges for Services

444000 Charges, Fees, Fines 805,977               864,327              58,350                 107%

445000 SDCs (Capital) 181,920               116,045              (65,875)              64%

207000 SDCs ‐ Pass thru JWC 126,320               85,769                 (40,551)              68%

1,114,217            1,066,141           (48,076)              96%

461000 Interest 3,845                    4,657                   812                      121%

440000 Miscellaneous 200                       15                        (185)                     7%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,118,262            1,070,812           (47,450)              96%

EXPENDITURES

208150 Franchise Fee ‐Water 39,000                  39,000                 ‐                       100%

310000 Utilities 5,130                    7,688                   (2,558)                  150%

330000 Professional Services

330000 Meter Reader 1,000                    3,041                   (2,041)                  304%

330000 Alexin Laboratory 2,250                    1,177                   1,073                   52%

330000 Other 6,000                    864                      5,136                   14%

9,250                    5,082                   4,168                   55%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 15,000                  3,619                   11,381                 24%

610000 Supplies 7,500                    7,201                   299                      96%

610600 Water Purchase 120,000               120,555              (555)                     100%

630000 New Water Service Materials 5,000                    2,748                   2,252                   55%

800000 Bad debt (sent to collections) ‐                        2,284                   (2,284)                  100%

207000 SDC Pass Thru JWC 126,320               85,769                 40,551                 68%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 327,200               273,946              53,254                 84%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

WATER FUND 210 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

770000 PW Projects 115,000               110,200              4,800                   96%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 115,000               110,200              4,800                   96%

500500 Debt Service ‐ 2005 Bond 134,332               134,332              0                           100%

DEBT SERVICE 134,332               134,332              0                           100%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund 458,428               421,708              36,720                 92%

TRANSFERS 458,428               421,708              36,720                 92%

CONTINGENCY 50,000                  ‐                       50,000                 0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,084,960            940,185              144,775             87%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 33,302                 130,627              (97,325)             

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 945,412               1,042,737           (97,325)             

Committed to Capital Projects 255,494               194,419              (61,075)             

Unassigned 689,918               848,318              (36,250)             

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT TAX FUND 130 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 263,325              263,325              ‐                  

REVENUES

415100 TDT  266,600              166,527              (100,073)         62%

461000 Interest 420                      1,706                   1,286               406%

TOTAL REVENUES 267,020              168,233              (98,787)           63%

EXPENDITURES

770000 PW Projects 50,000                 32,677                 17,323             65%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 50,000                32,677                17,323            65%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund 4,000                   2,614                   1,386               65%

TRANSFERS 4,000                   2,614                   1,386               65%

CONTINGENCY 50,000                 ‐                       50,000             0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 104,000              35,291                68,709            34%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 163,020              132,942              (30,078)          

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 426,345              396,267              (30,078)          

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

PARKS CAPITAL FUND 131 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 458,181               458,181              ‐                 

REVENUES

445000 SDCs 156,400               95,795                 (60,605)         61%

461000 Interest 1,925                    2,346                   421                122%

TOTAL REVENUES 158,325               98,141                (60,184)         62%

EXPENDITURES

770000 PW Projects 105,000               105,460              (460)               100%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 105,000               105,460              (460)               100%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund 8,400                    8,133                   267                97%

TRANSFERS 8,400                    8,133                   267                97%

CONTINGENCY 100,000               ‐                       100,000        0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 213,400               113,593              99,807          53%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (55,075)                (15,452)               39,623         

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 403,106                442,729                39,623           

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

TRAFFIC IMPACT FEE FUND 132 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 287,669               287,669              ‐                 

REVENUES

461000 Interest 1,435                    1,542                   107                107%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,435                    1,542                   107                107%

EXPENDITURES

770000 PW Projects 50,000                  ‐                       50,000           0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY 50,000                 ‐                       50,000          0%

CONTINGENCY 50,000                  ‐                       50,000           0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 100,000               ‐                       100,000        0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (98,565)                1,542                   100,107       

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 189,104               289,211              100,107       

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 56



City of North Plains

FY2013‐14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report 

VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND 009 FY14 FY14

Final Unaudited

Account Description Budget Actuals $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 25,580                25,580                ‐                 

REVENUES

461000 Interest 225                      180                      (45)                  80%

820110 Transfers In 13,800                 13,800                 ‐                  100%

TOTAL REVENUES 14,025                13,980                (45)                  100%

EXPENDITURES

700200 Vehicles ‐                       ‐                       ‐                  0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY ‐                       ‐                       ‐                  0%

CONTINGENCY 10,000                 ‐                       10,000            0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 10,000                ‐                       10,000           0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,025                   13,980                9,955             

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 29,605                39,560                9,955             

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 56



 

Agenda Item No: 9B   

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 6, 2014 

To:  City Council 

From:  Finance Director Rachael Lembo 

Subject: FY2014-15 July-Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report (1st Quarter) 

Request:  This item is informational only.  
 
Background:  Enclosed are the budget to actual financial reports for FY14-15 through 
September 2014. 
 
General Fund property tax revenues are low but that is normal as most collections are 
made in November and December. Monthly and quarterly franchise fees and 
intergovernmental revenues are mostly at 25%; some are paid annually in the spring 
(notably PGE). In addition, some September revenues had not yet been received at the 
time of this report so revenue does not reflect the full quarter.  
 
Grants and donations are not received regularly throughout the year, and often fluctuate 
year to year. The 4th of July revenue ended short of its goal, and no other community 
events have yet occurred. The library has already met over 50% of their donation goal.  
 
Transfers are based on actual expenses and will be recorded after the first quarter is 
finalized.  
 
Expenses are mostly at or below 25% of budget. The line items that are over 25% are 
over because of annual expenses that have already been incurred, such as car lease 
payments.   
 
Some accounts were separated out this year to allow for additional detail to be recorded 
in the accounting system – for example Professional Services now has multiple 
categories for items such as Attorney, Audit, Software, etc. The breakout makes is 
slightly more likely for individual lines to exceed budget, but they should be within 
budget in aggregate.  
 
New builds are starting, but SDCs were deferred on the first few homes so there’s no 
SDC revenue yet (other than for JWC and TDT SDCs which were not deferred).  
 
Multiple capital projects are budgeted but none have been started yet.    
 
Fiscal Impact:  This item is for informational purposes only.    
Attachment – FY2014-15 July-Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report 
 ____________________________________ 

NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 
Monday, October 6, 2014 

Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

GENERAL FUND 110

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 810,772               842,549             31,777                 

REVENUES

411000 Property Taxes 352,500               2,218                 (350,282)               1%

Licenses, Permits, Fees

418101 Water Franchise 44,500                 ‐                      (44,500)                 0%

418102 CWS Franchise 25,000                 5,123                 (19,877)                 20%

418103 Qwest Franchise 6,000                    91                       (5,909)                    2%

418104 Comcast Franchise 6,000                    1,491                 (4,509)                    25%

418105 Garbage Franchise 11,500                 2,738                 (8,762)                    24%

418107 PGE Franchise 93,000                 6,903                 (86,097)                 7%

418108 NW Natural Gas Franchise 33,000                 8,567                 (24,433)                 26%

418109 Misc Franchise 750                       186                     (564)                       25%

418110 MACC Franchise 14,000                 11,721               (2,279)                    84%

421000 Business License 6,500                    169                     (6,331)                    3%

422000 Recology Fund 48,000                 13,013               (34,987)                 27%

441419 Building Permit 30,000                 6,403                 (23,597)                 21%

441420 Engineering Plan Review 30,000                 ‐                      (30,000)                 0%

450455 Library Fines and Fees 11,000                 1,957                 (9,043)                    18%

450465 Planning Fines and Fees 4,000                    ‐                      (4,000)                    0%

363,250               58,362               (304,888)               16%

Intergovernmental

436000 Liquor Tax 26,000                 4,961                 (21,039)                 19%

437000 Cigarette Tax 2,800                    462                     (2,338)                    16%

438000 State Revenue Sharing 18,000                 4,344                 (13,656)                 24%

439000 WCCLS  101,890               25,471               (76,419)                 25%

148,690               35,238               (113,452)               24%

Fines and Forfeitures

450421 Police Citations 51,000                 6,387                 (44,613)                 13%

51,000                 6,387                 (44,613)                 13%

Grants and Donations

431000 Grants ‐ General 5,500                    ‐                      (5,500)                    0%

431001 Grants ‐ Police 29,245                 1,769                 (27,476)                 6%

431002 Grants ‐ Library 1,000                    ‐                      (1,000)                    0%

431003 Grants ‐ Planning 1,000                    ‐                      (1,000)                    0%

464000 Donations ‐ General ‐                        400                     400                       

464100 Comm Events Rev 1,500                    ‐                      (1,500)                    0%

464101 4th of July Rev 11,500                 2,454                 (9,046)                    21%

464102 Concerts in the Park Rev 750                       750                     ‐                         100%

464103 Music/Dance Event Rev 2,000                    ‐                      (2,000)                    0%

464104 Pumpkin Run Rev 2,800                    ‐                      (2,800)                    0%

464114 BBQ Event Rev 40,000                 802                     (39,198)                 2%

464421 Donations ‐ Police ‐                        ‐                      ‐                        

464455 Donations ‐ Library 8,000                    4,300                 (3,700)                    54%

103,295               10,475               (92,820)                 10%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

GENERAL FUND 110

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

462000 Rentals 7,000                    764                     (6,236)                    11%

461000 Interest 16,340                 ‐                      (16,340)                 0%

440000 Miscellaneous 10,000                 688                     (9,312)                    7%

Transfers

820111 Transfers In ‐ Street 112,297               ‐                      (112,297)               0%

820210 Transfers In ‐ Water 375,673               ‐                      (375,673)               0%

820131 Transfers In ‐ Parks Cap 14,000                 ‐                      (14,000)                 0%

820132 Transfers In ‐ TIF 21,527                 ‐                      (21,527)                 0%

820113 Transfers In ‐ URA 12,500                 ‐                      (12,500)                 0%

535,998               ‐                      (535,998)               0%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,588,073            114,133             (1,473,940)           7%

EXPENDITURES ‐ BY DEPT

110‐411 Culture and Recreation 72,855                 22,393               50,462                   31%

110‐419 General Government 494,939               153,519             341,420                31%

110‐421 Police 389,026               101,664             287,361                26%

110‐433 Public Works 388,374               90,732               297,642                23%

110‐452 Parks 13,090                 1,904                 11,186                   15%

110‐455 Library 205,228               47,337               157,891                23%

110‐465 Planning 5,000                    469                     4,531                     9%

Trans Transfers Out 22,328                 22,328               0                             100%

Sp Pay Special Payment 2,000                    66                       1,934                     3%

Cont Contingency 95,000                 ‐                      95,000                   0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,687,839            440,413             1,247,426             26%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (99,767)                (326,280)           (226,514)              

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 711,006               516,269             (194,737)              

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 110‐419

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

110000 Salaries 229,299                   53,681               175,617              23%

210000 Employee Benefits 34,497                     9,582                 24,915                28%

220000 Payroll Taxes 21,536                     4,026                 17,510                19%

230000 Retirement 33,042                     7,735                 25,306                23%

PERSONAL SERVICES 318,374                   75,025               318,374              24%

4       FTE

300000 Education and Training 4,000                       329                     3,671                  8%

300010 BUG Connection 9,000                       6,922                 2,078                  77%

300105 Donations 2,000                       ‐                      2,000                  0%

310000 Utilities 15,450                     2,532                 12,918                16%

330000 Professional Services 1,000                       2,230                 (1,230)                 223%

330100 Prof Srv ‐ Attorney 12,000                     4,204                 7,796                  35%

330101 Prof Srv ‐ Audit 9,000                       ‐                      9,000                  0%

330102 Prof Srv ‐ Software 12,000                     11,484               516                      96%

330103 Prof Srv ‐ IT 13,000                     ‐                      13,000                0%

330104 Prof Srv ‐ Printing 10,800                     2,009                 8,791                  19%

330105 Prof Srv ‐ Payroll 4,700                       1,011                 3,689                  22%

330106 Prof Srv ‐ Janitorial 2,400                       585                     1,815                  24%

330107 Prof Srv ‐ Security 2,520                       870                     1,650                  35%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 2,500                       350                     2,150                  14%

340100 R&M ‐ Copier 9,500                       1,830                 7,670                  19%

340101 R&M ‐ HVAC 3,720                       927                     2,793                  25%

350000 Agency Memberships 4,500                       2,479                 2,021                  55%

500000 Employee/ Vol Recognition 1,475                       ‐                      1,475                  0%

540000 Advertising 600                           ‐                      600                      0%

610000 Supplies 9,000                       2,175                 6,825                  24%

621000 Insurance 29,400                     34,131               (4,730)                 116%

621002 Workers' Compensation 18,000                     4,428                 13,572                25%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 176,565                   78,494               176,565              44%

GENERAL GOVERNMENT DEPT TOTAL 494,939                   153,519             494,939              31%

810009 Veh/Equip Reserve 3,000                       3,000                 3,000                  100%

810111 Recology to Street 10,000                     10,000               10,000                100%

TRANSFERS 13,000                     13,000               13,000                100%

GENERAL GOVERNMENT DEPT INCL 

   TRANSFERS 507,939                   166,519             507,939              33%

Variance Pos / (Neg)

Budget to Actuals

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

POLICE 110‐421

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

110000 Salaries 147,683                   29,544               118,139              20%

120000 Hourly 33,809                     7,462                 26,347                22%

125000 Reserves 27,245                     5,610                 21,635                21%

210000 Employee Benefits 25,764                     3,611                 22,153                14%

220000 Payroll Taxes 20,289                     3,358                 16,931                17%

230000 Retirement 37,620                     7,037                 30,584                19%

PERSONAL SERVICES 292,410                   56,621               292,410              19%

3      FTE

300000 Education and Training 3,000                       204                     2,796                  7%

330000 Professional Services 4,000                       3,320                 680                      83%

330102 Prof Srv ‐ Software 7,975                       1,970                 6,005                  25%

330108 Prof Srv ‐ Wireless 4,200                       912                     3,288                  22%

330109 Prof Srv ‐ Evid Storage 2,600                       ‐                      2,600                  0%

330912 WA County Dispatch 12,500                     6,210                 6,290                  50%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 7,000                       3,740                 3,260                  53%

350000 Agency Memberships 1,000                       378                     622                      38%

370000 Rentals and Leases 21,041                     21,040               1                          100%

610000 Supplies 12,000                     2,949                 9,051                  25%

610100 Uniforms 3,500                       722                     2,778                  21%

610224 Fuel 13,000                     3,598                 9,402                  28%

630000 Equipment (non‐capital) 4,800                       ‐                      4,800                  0%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 96,616                     45,043               51,573                47%

POLICE DEPARTMENT TOTAL 389,026                   101,664             343,983              66%

820000 Court Pass Through 2,000                       66                       2,000                 

SPECIAL PAYMENTS 2,000                       66                       2,000                  3%

810009 Veh/Equip Reserve 6,400                       6,400                 6,400                 

TRANSFERS 6,400                       6,400                 6,400                  100%

POLICE DEPARTMENT INCL SP PAYMENTS

   AND TRANSFERS 397,426                   108,130             352,383              27%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

PUBLIC WORKS 110‐433

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

110000 Salaries 232,739                   57,494               175,245              25%

210000 Employee Benefits 30,763                     6,781                 23,982                22%

220000 Payroll Taxes 21,395                     4,439                 16,956                21%

230000 Retirement 45,057                     9,436                 35,621                21%

PERSONAL SERVICES 329,954                   78,150               251,804              24%

3       FTE

300000 Education and Training 1,500                       275                     1,225                  18%

310000 Utilities 1,320                       513                     807                      39%

330000 Professional Services 500                           ‐                      500                      0%

330110 City Engineer Plan Review 30,000                     3,720                 26,280                12%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 10,000                     2,096                 7,904                  21%

610000 Supplies 3,500                       3,569                 (69)                       102%

610090 Uniforms 600                           38                       562                      6%

610224 Fuel 11,000                     2,372                 8,628                  22%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 58,420                     12,582               45,838                22%

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT TOTAL 388,374                   90,732               297,642              23%

810009 Veh/Equip Reserve 328                           328                     0                          100%

TRANSFERS 328                           328                     0                          100%

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT INCL 

   TRANSFERS 388,702                   91,060               297,642              23%

Variance Pos / (Neg)

Budget to Actuals

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

LIBRARY 110‐455

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

110000 Salaries 134,465                   29,976               104,489              22%

220000 Payroll Taxes 14,685                     2,465                 12,220                17%

230000 Retirement 15,084                     3,218                 11,866                21%

PERSONAL SERVICES 164,234                   35,659               128,575              22%

3.6   FTE

300000 Education and Training 800                           344                     456                      43%

300100 Donations ‐                            ‐                      ‐                      

310000 Utilities 7,950                       1,459                 6,491                  18%

330000 Professional Services ‐                            1,034                 (1,034)                

330102 Prof Svcs ‐ Software 2,300                       1,717                 583                      75%

330106 Prof Srv ‐ Janitorial 2,100                       525                     1,575                  25%

330107 Prof Srv ‐ Security 1,220                       417                     803                      34%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance ‐                            51                       (51)                      

340100 R&M ‐ Copier 3,624                       1,452                 2,172                  40%

340101 R&M ‐ HVAC 2,000                       ‐                      2,000                  0%

610000 Supplies 8,500                       1,307                 7,193                  15%

640000 Library Materials 12,500                     3,371                 9,129                  27%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 40,994                     11,678               29,316                28%

LIBRARY DEPARTMENT TOTAL 205,228                   47,337               157,891              23%

810009 Veh/Equip Reserve 2,600                       2,600                 2,600                  100%

TRANSFERS 2,600                       2,600                 2,600                  100%

LIBRARY DEPARTMENT INCL 

   TRANSFERS 207,828                   49,937               160,491              24%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

CULTURE AND RECREATION 110‐411

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

110000 Salaries 5,995                    2,525                 3,470                  42%

220000 Payroll Taxes 906                       205                     701                      23%

230000 Retirement 864                       364                     500                      42%

PERSONAL SERVICES 7,765                    3,094                 4,671                  40%

0.1      FTE

300101 4th of July 17,500                  15,732               1,768                  90%

300102 Concerts in the Park 1,500                    1,832                 (332)                    122%

300103 Dances 2,000                    ‐                      2,000                  0%

300106 Pumpkin Run 2,800                    868                     1,932                  31%

300107 Chili Cookoff 500                       95                       405                      19%

300108 National Night Out 400                       699                     (299)                    175%

300111 Ice Cream Social 300                       ‐                      300                      0%

300113 Holiday Bazaar 90                         ‐                      90                        0%

300114 BBQ 40,000                  (58)                      40,058                0%

300115 Adventures without Limits ‐                        ‐                      ‐                      

300116 Garlic Festival Expense ‐                        133                     (133)                   

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 65,090                  19,300               45,790                30%

CULTURE AND RECREATION DEPT TOTAL 72,855                  22,393               50,462                31%

Variance Pos / (Neg)

Budget to Actuals

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

PARKS 110‐452

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

310000 Utilities 5,490                    677                     4,813                 12%

330000 Professional Services 600                       ‐                      600                     0%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 4,000                    1,022                 2,978                 26%

610000 Supplies 3,000                    205                     2,795                 7%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 13,090                 1,904                 11,186               15%

PARKS DEPARTMENT TOTAL 13,090                 1,904                 11,186               15%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

PLANNING 110‐465

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

330000 Professional Services 4,000                    50                       3,950         1%

360000 Advertising 1,000                    419                     581             42%

MATERIALS AND SERVICES 5,000                    469                     4,531         9%

PLANNING DEPARTMENT TOTAL 5,000                    469                     4,531         9%

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

STREET FUND 111

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

Street Fee in Lieu 141,154               141,154               ‐                     

Recology Fund 10,000                  10,000                  ‐                     

Unassigned (7,987)                   29,902                  37,889              

OPENING FUND BALANCE 143,167               181,056               37,889              

REVENUES

Licenses, Permits, Fees

435003 TUF 25,200                  4,273                    (20,927)             17%

445000 SDCs 25,900                  ‐                        (25,900)             0%

51,100                  4,273                    (46,827)             8%

Intergovernmental

435001 Gas Tax ‐ State 115,000               17,808                  (97,192)             15%

435002 Gas Tax ‐ County 7,500                    1,362                    (6,138)                18%

122,500               19,170                  (103,330)           16%

461000 Interest 1,030                    ‐                        (1,030)                0%

440000 Miscellaneous ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

820110 Transfers In ‐ Gen Fund 10,000                  10,000                  ‐                      100%

TOTAL REVENUES 184,630               33,443                  (151,187)           18%

EXPENDITURES

Streets Department

330000 Professional Services 4,000                    ‐                        4,000                 0%

610000 Supplies 1,000                    463                       537                     46%

640000 Street Lights 25,800                  3,908                    21,892               15%

Materials and Services 30,800                  4,371                    26,429               14%

770103 Street Projects ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

Capital Outlay ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

STREETS DEPARTMENT TOTAL 30,800                  4,371                    26,429               14%

810009 Transfers Out ‐ Veh Res 828                       828                       0                          100%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund  111,002               ‐                        111,002             0%

TRANSFERS 111,830               828                       111,002            1%

CONTINGENCY 14,000                  ‐                        14,000               0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 156,630               5,199                    151,432            3%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 28,000                  28,244                  245                    

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 171,167               209,300               38,134              

Street Fee in Lieu 141,154               141,154               ‐                     

Recology Fund 20,000                  10,000                  (10,000)            

Unassigned 10,013                  58,146                  48,134              

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

WATER FUND 210

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

Committed to Capital Projects 260,294               194,419               (65,875)                   

Unassigned 893,653               848,318               (45,335)                   

OPENING FUND BALANCE 1,153,947            1,042,737            (111,210)                

REVENUES

444000 Charges, Fees, Fines 890,000               185,922               (704,078)                  21%

Licenses, Permits, Fees

445000 SDCs (Capital) 214,900               ‐                        (214,900)                  0%

446000 SDCs ‐ Pass thru JWC 145,400               5,040                    (140,360)                  3%

360,300               5,040                    (355,260)                  1%

461000 Interest 4,275                    ‐                        (4,275)                      0%

440000 Miscellaneous ‐                        56                         56                            

TOTAL REVENUES 1,254,575            191,018               (1,063,557)             15%

EXPENDITURES

208150 Franchise Fee ‐Water 44,500                  ‐                        44,500                     0%

310000 Utilities 7,530                    1,372                    6,158                       18%

330000 Professional Services 2,000                    132                       1,868                       7%

330111 Prof Srv‐ Meter Reading 9,500                    1,443                    8,057                       15%

330112 Prof Srv‐ Water Analysis 2,250                    58                         2,192                       3%

330113 Prof Srv‐ Tank Cleaning 3,000                    ‐                        3,000                       0%

330114 Prof Srv‐ Leak Detection 3,500                    3,450                    50                             99%

340000 Repairs and Maintenance 10,000                  1,939                    8,061                       19%

610000 Supplies 7,500                    655                       6,845                       9%

610600 Water Purchase 134,000               33,549                  100,451                   25%

630000 New Water Service Materials 5,000                    ‐                        5,000                       0%

Materials and Services 228,780               42,599                  186,181                   19%

770000 PW Projects ‐                        ‐                        ‐                           

77000X PW Projects‐ North Ave ext 26,000                  ‐                        26,000                     0%

77000X PW Projects‐ auto meter read 50,000                  ‐                        50,000                     0%

Capital Outlay 76,000                  ‐                        76,000                     0%

WATER DEPARTMENT TOTAL 304,780               42,599                  262,181                  

800500 SDC Pass Thru JWC 145,400               ‐                        145,400                   0%

SPECIAL PAYMENTS 145,400               ‐                        145,400                   0%

500500 Debt Service ‐ 2005 Bond 134,332               ‐                        134,332                   0%

DEBT SERVICE 134,332               ‐                        134,332                   0%

810009 Transfers Out ‐ Veh Res  2,156                    2,156                    ‐                            100%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund 371,615               ‐                        371,615                   0%

TRANSFERS 373,771               2,156                    371,615                   1%

CONTINGENCY 500,000               ‐                        500,000                   0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,458,283            44,755                  1,413,528              3%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (203,708)              146,263               349,971                  

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 950,239               1,189,000            238,761                  

Committed to Capital Projects ‐                        194,419               194,419                  

Unassigned 950,239               994,581               44,342                    

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

TRANSP. DEVELOPMENT TAX FUND 130

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 496,196               396,267               (99,929)            

REVENUES

415100 TDT  333,250               26,660                  (306,590)           8%

461000 Interest 1,795                    ‐                        (1,795)                0%

TOTAL REVENUES 335,045               26,660                  (308,385)           8%

EXPENDITURES

Trans. Development Tax Department

770000 PW Projects ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

Capital Outlay ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

TDT DEPARTMENT TOTAL ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund ‐                        ‐                     

TRANSFERS ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

CONTINGENCY 200,000               200,000             0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 200,000               ‐                        200,000            0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 135,045               26,660                  (108,385)          

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 631,241               422,927               (208,314)          

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

PARKS CAPITAL FUND 131

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 503,130               442,729               (60,401)           

REVENUES

445000 SDCs 195,500               ‐                        (195,500)          0%

461000 Interest 2,580                    ‐                        (2,580)               0%

TOTAL REVENUES 198,080               ‐                        (198,080)          0%

EXPENDITURES

Parks Capital Departmnet

770000 PW Projects ‐                        ‐                        ‐                    

77000X PW Projects ‐ trails/skatepark 25,000                  ‐                        25,000              0%

77000X PW Projects ‐ Jessie Mays 150,000               ‐                        150,000            0%

Capital Outlay 175,000               ‐                        175,000           0%

PARKS CAPITAL DEPT TOTAL 175,000               ‐                        175,000           0%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ Gen Fund 14,000                  14,000              0%

TRANSFERS 14,000                  ‐                        14,000              0%

CONTINGENCY 512,210               512,210            0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 701,210               ‐                        701,210           0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (503,130)              ‐                        503,130          

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE ‐                          442,729                 442,729            

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

TRAFFIC IMPACT FEE FUND 132

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

OPENING FUND BALANCE 289,220               289,210               (10)                     

REVENUES

461000 Interest 1,400                    ‐                        (1,400)                0%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,400                    ‐                        (1,400)               0%

EXPENDITURES

Traffic Impact Fee Department

Personal Services

770000 PW Projects ‐ West Union ped 269,093               ‐                        269,093             0%

Capital Outlay 269,093               ‐                        269,093            0%

TIF DEPT TOTAL 269,093               ‐                        269,093            0%

810110 Transfers Out ‐ GF 21,527                  21,527               0%

TRANSFERS 21,527                  ‐                        21,527               0%

CONTINGENCY ‐                        ‐                        ‐                     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 290,620               ‐                        290,620            0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (289,220)              ‐                        289,220           

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE ‐                        289,210               289,210           

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 56



City of North Plains

FY14‐15 July‐Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report

VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND 009

Adopted Actuals

Account Description Budget 9/26/14 $ %

Police 5,200                    5,200                    ‐                 

Public Works 32,740                  32,760                  20                   

Library 1,600                    1,600                    ‐                 

OPENING FUND BALANCE 39,540                  39,560                  20                   

REVENUES

461000 Interest 195                       ‐                        (195)                0%

820110 Transfers In 15,312                  15,312                  (0)                     100%

TOTAL REVENUES 15,507                  15,312                  (195)                99%

EXPENDITURES

Vehicle/Equipment Reserve Department

770200 Vehicles/Equipment 7,500                    ‐                        7,500              0%

Capital Outlay 7,500                    ‐                        7,500              0%

VEH/EQUIP RES DEPT TOTAL 7,500                    ‐                        7,500              0%

CONTINGENCY 1,000                    ‐                        1,000              0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,500                    ‐                        8,500              0%

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 7,007                    15,312                  8,305              219%

UNAPPROPRIATED

ENDING FUND BALANCE 46,547                  54,872                  8,325             

Police 11,600                  11,600           

Public Works 25,748                  25,748           

Library 4,200                    4,200             

General Government 5,000                    5,000             

Budget to Actuals

Variance Pos / (Neg)

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 56



 

Agenda Item No: 9C     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  September 30, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Request from Charles and Linda Rittenhouse regarding flashing lights at 

311th and Commercial Street 

Background:  Charles and Linda Rittenhouse have requested that Council consider the 
installation of flashing lights at 311th and Commercial Street, similar to lights places at 
309th and North Avenue.   
 
Mr. and Mrs. Rittenhouse frequently use the intersection, and have found drivers are 
unable to see pedestrians in the hours close to dusk and evening hours in particular.  
Attached is their request. 
 
A solar powered blinker signs which can be mounted on a post and responsive to push 
buttons costs between $4,000-$10,000.  An example of solar system is included in 
Council’s packet.  The configuration and number of signs and controllers would 
determine the final cost.  
 
Before staff programs this kind of improvement in the budget, it is seeking Council’s 
direction regarding if this intersection is a high priority for a pedestrian alert system.  
Other locations that could benefit from similar lights include: 
 

 Commercial at Main  

 Glencoe at Commercial 

 Glencoe at Pacific 

 McKay Creek Ct at Glencoe 
 
Fiscal Impact:  A sign system could be acquired in this fiscal year or subsequent fiscal 
year using funds from the Street Fund, or in some cases the Urban Renewal Agency.   
 
Recommendation:  Council advise how it would prioritize intersections for flashing 
lights, and if it would like staff to arrange the installation of flashing lights at 311th and 
Commercial. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 56



TAPCO’s brilliant innovation of enhancing traffic 
signs with LEDs (Light-Emitting Diodes) makes 
intersections safer, reduces accidents and saves lives!

Day-Viz™ (Daylight Visible BlinkerSigns) feature an 
array of incredibly bright LEDs that flash in unison, 
once per second, commanding the attention of 
drivers DAY AND NIGHT.

W
11

-2
 S

OL
AR

Patents  #6,943,698; #6,693,556
Other Patents Pending

  Solar Powered

  No AC Power Required

  Easy Installation

  MUTCD Compliant

  Proprietary Day-Viz™ Circuitry

BlinkerSigns™

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 56



Features

•  Installs easily onto any 
new or existing sign post

•  Can be integrated into  
an ITS (Intelligent  
Transportation System)

•  High intensity Day-Viz™ 
LEDs command attention 
day and night

•  Can be programmed to 
operate continuously (24/7) 
or on solar time clocks, 
push-buttons and motion 
(vehicle) detectors

•  Proprietary circuitry 
automatically adjusts 
light output for maximum 
visibility and battery 
efficiency

•  Multiple signs can be 
synchronized

•  Heightened driver 
awareness

•  Increased visibility at high 
incident intersections

applications

•  New crosswalk locations
• High incident intersections
• Rural roads
•  Advance crosswalk 

warnings

standard speciFications*
Sign Specification- MUTCD #W11-2
Sign Substrate .080 Highway Grade Aluminum

Reflective Sheeting FYG- 3M™ DG3™- with anti-graffiti overlay

MUTCD Compliance MUTCD Section 2A.08 Compliant

Day-Viz™ Management System (patent pending)
Battery Nickel Metal Hydride (NiHM)- 14,000mAh

Battery Lifespan Up to 5 years

Autonomy- Functionality without Charge Up to 30 days in 24/7 operation

Flash Pattern MUTCD Compliant

LED Type High Power Luxeon- 1 watt

LED Life Expectancy Over 100,000 hours

Warranty
Term 1 Full Year Warranty

Smart Activation Options
24/7 continuous

Time clock activation (Windows based software programmable)

Wireless control activation

Vehicle detection activation

For complete specifications and details  
call or visit www.tapconet.com

5100 W. Brown Deer • Brown Deer, WI 53223
Ph: 262.814.7000 • 800.236.0112 
Fax: 262.814.7017 • 800.444.0331 
www.tapconet.com • www.tapcostore.com

Distributed By:

W
11

-2
 S

OL
AR

Patents #6,943,698; #6,693,556
Other Patents Pending

*All specifications subject to change without notice.

04090007

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 56



1

Margaret Reh

From: Charles Rittenhouse <oceanwaves536@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, September 11, 2014 12:19 PM
To: Martha DeBry
Subject: Flashing lights

Please ask the city counsel to consider installation of flashing lights at two locations, 311 & Commercial ( most important 
because of park ) and Main & Commercial. My son and I were almost hit at 311 and Commercial, thank you for your 
consideration on this matter. 
Charles and Linda Rittenhouse 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 56



 

Agenda Item No: 9D     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 2, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Review of 2014 Garlic Festival Expenses for the City of North Plains 

Background:  Council had requested staff to present costs associated with various 
events that take place in the city throughout the year. The attached report reflects the 
costs the City incurred with work and expenses associated with the 2014 Elephant 
Garlic Festival.  
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 56



City of North Plains Agenda Item 9D
Garlic Fest Event Review

as of September 17, 2014

Direct expenses

Description Amount

Electric outlet repair at JMCH 3,099.00$       

Facebook ad 25.00$            

Costco- Garlic Fest candy 93.83$            

3,217.83$       

Indirect staff expenses

Description Hours Amount

Police

  Cadets - volunteer 51 -$                 

  Reserves - volunteer 100.5 -$                 

  Officers - paid 46 1,551.64$       

  Chief - unpaid 2 -$                 

Public Works

  Utility Workers - paid 48 1,332.66$       

2,884.30$       

Total City Cost 6,102.13$       

Directly related to the Garlic Fest (would not have occurred without the event). These costs 

were the City's support of the event. The outlet repair was coded to Parks in FY14 and 

covered by the Parks Repair budget. The other costs were coded to Community Events - 

Garlic Fest in FY15 and there was no budget for that line item; other event expenses will be 

reduced to cover this cost. 

This reflects hours staff spent on the Garlic Fest. Without the Garlic Fest these staff would 

still have worked and been paid. Staff costs are budgeted in their respective departments. 

Costs include wages and estimate of benefits. 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 56



 

Agenda Item No: 10A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  October 6, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Public Works Director Blake Boyles 

Subject: Approval of Resolution No. 1855 Approving Fiscal Year 2014-15 Budget 

Transfer of Appropriations--purchasing a Leaf Vacuum and a Snow Plow 

Request:  To use funds set aside in the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund and to 
transfer $1,000 from the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund Contingency into Capital 
Outlay to purchase a trailer mounted leaf vacuum and a truck mounted snow plow. 
 
Background: During preliminary forecasting for the 2014-2015 fiscal budget, both a 
leaf vacuum and snow plow was requested to be purchased. During the cost cutting 
period of the budget the leaf vacuum was cut and the purchase of the snow plow was 
chosen. 
 
The reasoning for the vacuum was to collect the leaves that are accumulating from 
maturing street trees in subdivisions and prevent flooding by plugged catch basins. 
The snow plow was requested to assist in large snow events of 4” and above. In the 
past events the backhoe was used when needed to plow. 
 
This request was discussed and approved at the September 15, 2014 Council meeting. 
Council agreed to transfer $1,000 from the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund 
Contingency into Capital Outlay to allow for the purchase of both a snow plow and a leaf 
vacuum.  This resolution is the recording of that decision. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  There is no additional fiscal impact as these funds are already in the 
budget.  
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  City Council Adopt Resolution No. 1855 approving fiscal Year 
2014-15 Budget Transfer of Appropriations. This will allow for the purchase of a leaf 
vacuum and a snow plow for the Public Works department. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 56



RESOLUTION NO. 1855 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, APPROVING FISCAL YEAR 2014-15 BUDGET TRANSFER OF 

APPROPRIATIONS 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Oregon Budget Law, contingency transfers up to 
15% of total fund appropriations can be transferred by resolution; and    

 
WHEREAS, total fund appropriations in the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve 

Fund are $7,500; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Director has requested Council transfer $1,000 

from the Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund Contingency into Capital Outlay to 
allow for the purchase of both a snow plow and a leaf vacuum.  

.  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, that the following transfers are made to the 
City of North Plains FY2014-15 Budget: 

 

Contingency Transfer

Vehicle and Equip Reserve Fund Contingency (1,000)          

Vehicle and Equip Reserve Fund Capital Outlay 1,000           

To allow for purchase of snow plow and leaf vacuum. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 6th day of October, 2014. 

 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  ___________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ____________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 56



October 2014 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

First Friday Flick at Jessie Mays Community Hall! 
Movie in the Hall 

6:00 p.m. 10/03 

City Council  
7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

10/06 

Planning Commission Hatcher  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 10/08 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 10/09 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 10/13 

Parks Board   
Add’l meeting this month to 
discuss Parks Master Plan: 
6:00 at Senior Center 

10/15 

Library Board Lenahan  
Joint Board meeting with 
Bank Public Library in Banks, 
Tuesday at 6:00 p.m. 

10/21 

Chili Cook-off  
Thursday, 6:00 p.m. at Jessie 
Mays Community Hall 

10/16 

City Council   
7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

10/20 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) 

Hatcher  4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 10/22 

Parks Board  4th Wednesday @ 6 p.m. 10/22 

Pumpkin Fun Run/Walk   
Saturday, 9:00 a.m. at Jessie 
Mays Community Hall 

10/25 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

DeBry Demagalski   

 

____________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL PACKET 

Monday, October 6, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 56


	4A 100614 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 091514 City Council Minutes
	5C Police Dept Report to CC Sept 2014
	5Ca Copy of Current Police Report Stats
	5Cb Public Works Director Report Sept 26 2014
	5Cc Library Director Report to City Council 2014 10-06
	9A Memo FY2013-14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report
	9Aa FY13-14 Unaudited Budget to Actual Financial Report
	9B Memo FY2014-15 July-Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report
	9Ba FY2014-15 July-Sept Budget to Actual Financial Report
	9C Memo flashing lights
	9Cb flashing light system information and flyer
	9Cc Rittenhouse flashing light system
	9D City of North Plains 091714 Garlic Fest expenses from Rachael on 9-22-14
	10A Memo Resolution No. 1855 funds for leaf vacuum vs. snow plow
	10A Resolution Number 1855 VERF Contingency-Snow Plow and Leaf Vacuum
	13B Calendar October 2014



